From: Graham, Stuart

Sent: Tuesday, November 08, 2011 4:36 PM

To: SMEpatenting

Subject: FW: International Patent Protection for Small Businesses

Attachments: China Intellectual Property News, Nov 7, 2007, quote from the former Senior Judge, IP

Division of Beijing High People’s Court (Short).pdf

From: Gongola, Janet

Sent: Tuesday, November 08, 2011 4:36 PM

To: Graham, Stuart

Subject: FW: International Patent Protection for Small Businesses

Please replace my earlier email circulation with this. It looks like Mr. Thomas has corrected broken links and is
recirculating.

From: NeilThomas@relaxexpress.net [mailto:NeilThomas@relaxexpress.net]
Sent: Tuesday, November 08, 2011 1:18 PM

To: Gongola, Janet; aia_implementation; IP Policy

Subject: International Patent Protection for Small Businesses

Attention: Janet Gongola

PLEASE NOTE THE CORRECTED LINKS; SORRY FOR CONFUSION

1. Overall, how important is international patent protection to small business?

Huge, to say the least, when countries like China openly steal intellectual property and millions
of manufacturing and technical jobs are going overseas every year.

When you consider that all net new jobs in America are created by small businesses ,
the consequences of AIA will be devastating. See, The Importance of Startups in Job Creation
and Job Destruction, July 2010, by Tim Kane, Ewing Marion Kauffman Foundation;
http://www.kauffman.org/uploadedFiles/firm_formation_importance_of startups.pdf

Don't lose sight of the fact that AIA was passed by Congress to make it easier for the large
multinationals infringe small entity patents and to send more jobs over seas. See, Patent
Reform is all About Making it Easier for Multinational Corporations to Steal Innovation and
Offshore American Jobs, 4-12-11, by Neil Thomas, Silver Spring, MD;
http://www.docs.piausa.org/NeilThomas/Patent%20Reform%620is%20AI12%620About%20Makin
g%20it%20Easier%20for%20Multinational%20Corporations%20t0%20Steal%20Inventions%2
0and%200ffshore%20American%20Jobs,%6204-12-11.pdf

It has now become a 'national security' issue!

2. At what point, if ever, in the growth of small companies does international patent protection become
important?

From the day that Congress enacts legislation and the USPTO writes regulations that hurts
them. Small companies are competing from 'day one' in a global market for survival with
companies worldwide which have huge cost advantages, regulatory advantages and
governments which protect them from competition, e.g. The Peoples Republic of China, for
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one example.

As pointed out by the former Senior Judge, IP Division of Beijing High People’s Court about a
previous version of AIA stated, "...it will make the patent less reliable, easier to be challenged
and cheaper to be infringed...will give the companies from developing countries more freedom
and flexibility to challenge the...US patent...and make it less costly to infringe. The bill...will
weaken the patent protection..." See, China Intellectual Property News, Nov. 7, 2007; quote
from the former Senior Judge, IP Division of Beijing High People’s Court, about a previous
version of the pending American Invents Act H R 1249;
http://www.reformaia.org/sites/default/files/071107-
China%20Intellectual%20Property%20News_ Certified%20(with%20Selectable%20Text).pdf

3. What challenges, if any, interfere with the growth and competitiveness of small companies if
international patent protection is not sought early in the innovation process?

The theft of intellectual property by countries like China and the enormous cost and expense
of enforcement to protect IP. AIA simply makes that more difficult for small businesses.

With the introduction of "first-to-file" (FTF) it forces small companies to divert their attention
and resources from research and development, finding customers, and growing their business
to filing numerous, often wasteful patent applications both domestically and

internationally. Under AIA small companies will now need to file multiple applications as their
R&D progresses to protect a multitude of ideas, only a few of which will ultimately work. For a
small company this will be a huge distraction and cost since seeking patent protection is an
expensive and time-consuming activity. Passage of F-T-F was a huge disservice to America's
small businesses!

4. What specific role does international patent protection play in the successful internationalization
strategies (such as franchising, exporting, or foreign-direct-investment) of small businesses? Does this
role differ by industry or sector?

Since countries like China are engaged in "unfair trade practices," protecting their domestic
industries, manipulating their currency, American businesses (and | don't mean IBM, Intel,
MICRON and GE which employ more people overseas than in the US and are no longer
American companies) need some sort of protection from our government.

However, AIA makes patent protection more difficult and more expensive for small businesses,
not less.

5. How can the USPTO and other Federal agencies best support small businesses regarding international
patents:

(a) In obtaining international patent rights?
Create one single, simplified, streamlined, and more flexible filing and prosecution
process for small and micro entities.
Provide a 'one filing' patent system for small businesses and inventors.
Provide an agency to enforce patents held by small-entity US patentees for them.
Suggest to Congress that they repeal AIA and return to "First to Invent."

(b) In maintaining international patent rights?

Create one single, simplified administrative procedure for maintaining US and foreign
patent rights.

(c) In enforcing international patent rights?



Create one single, simplified administrative procedure for enforcing US and foreign
patent rights instead of the endless, costly multitude of Ex parte reexam, Inter parte
review, PGR, Sec. 18 Transitional Program, and judicial proceedings. All these
challenges greatly diminish the value of patents and discourage innovation.

Create and fund a Government agency to ‘prosecute’ alleged infringement of small entity
held US patents.

Provide penalties including treble damages for infringement and make rules for recovery
of costs for the costs of enforcement including legal fees.

6. What role should the Federal Government play in assisting small businesses to defray the costs of filing,
maintaining, and enforcing international patent protection?

Create a highly simplified 'one-file' system where a small business can file once in the US that

automatically takes effect world-wide. This multi-filing, multi-rule system is an absurd burden

on small businesses and inventors.

Create an agency that enforces patents held by small-entity US nationals for them.

Provide incentives for small-entity US nationals to "practice" their inventions in the US.
7. In order to help small businesses pay for the costs of filing, maintaining, and enforcing international
patent applications, how effective would it be to establish a revolving fund loan program to make loans to
small businesses to defray the costs of such applications, maintenance, and enforcement and related
technical assistance?

Hugely effective!

(a) Under what specific circumstances, if at all, would such a fund be effective at helping small
businesses?

If it were a streamlined, simplified, or even automatic process. The less paperwork, the
better. If the amount of funding was meaningful.

(b) If such a fund would be effective, should the fund be maintained by the Federal Government,
and if so, through what mechanism?

Create an agency, insulated from political pressure, run by true small entity inventors to
manage such a fund.

(c) What criteria should be used to decide upon recipients of funding?

Any small entity (500 employees or less). Make the loan proportion to the potential value of
any particular patent; the more potentially valuable, the bigger the loan...obviously.

(d) Could the private sector be meaningfully involved in maintaining and implementing such a fund?

Make absolutely sure that the politicians and big corporations are in NO way involved
in maintaining and implementing such a fund; big corporations want to destroy small
inventors and are anathema to small patent owners.

Invite 'co-investment' by proven private venture capitalists provided they do not control the
invention. Venture capitalists could help ‘leverage’ such a fund.

Big businesses like IBM and Microsoft pay far too little in PTO fees in proportion to their size
and financial resources. Substantially increase PTO fees for large corporations to help fund; it
is fair and they can afford it.



8. In order to help small businesses pay for the costs of filing, maintaining, and enforcing international
patent applications, how effective would it be to establish a grant program to defray the costs of filing
applications, paying maintenance fees, and conducting enforcement and to provide related technical
assistance?

Huge. Grants would be even better, obviously. Small inventors and businesses typically
desperately need capital. Since the patent process and the value of patents are subject
to so much uncertainty, the system is a huge deterrent to innovation.

(a) Under what circumstances, if at all, would such a program be effective at helping small businesses?

If the amount of money was really meaningful; if the criteria were meaningful instead of like
the absurdly low, income criteria being used in the PTO's new 'pro bono' program. If you want
to give money to poor people, do so. If you want to give money to inventive and creative
people, make it effective and meaningful.

(b) If such a grant program would be effective, should the program be maintained by the Federal
Government, and if so, through what mechanism? What type of grant program, covering what specific
costs, would be most effective?

Such a grant program should be run by a non-politicized entity run by successful, true small-
entity inventors. Make it self-sustaining with grants being made on a profit sharing basis with
small inventors so that if a patent is successful, the fund shares in the profits.

Give the fund the discretion to fund any costs that would make the invention an economic
reality; much the way 'venture capitalists do.’

(c) What criteria should be used to decide upon recipients of grants?
Make the 'grants' an investment, not just a gift.
Breakthrough inventions and inventions which have large economic and/or social value.

Make it a condition that recipients 'practice’ their invention to create employment and
economic growth in America.

(d) Could the private sector be meaningfully involved in maintaining and implementing such a
program?

Absolutely! It should be run by credible, honest and successful small inventors and businesses
who have "walked the walk."

9. If the Federal Government is limited to providing either (i) A revolving fund loan program or (ii) a grant
program described above, but not both, which of these options would be more effective in accomplishing
the outcome of helping small businesses pay for the costs of filing, maintaining, and enforcing
international patent applications?

Obviously a well-run grant program run on an 'investment/profit sharing basis." The fund
could be not only self-sustaining, it could be highly profitable, both monetarily as well
as socially.

10. Are there circumstances under which the Federal Government should not consider establishing any of
these programs?

If it's under-funded, politicized or run by people who don't know what they are doing, or if the
amounts of funding are inconsequential.



Respectfully submitted,

Neil Thomas
Silver Spring, MD 20902
301-534-9769



LEGAL LANGUAGE SERVICES

| An affiliate of ALS Intemational Telephone (212) 7664111
18 John Street Toll Free  (800) 788-0450
Suite 300 Telefax  (212) 349-0964
New York, NY 10038 www.legallanguage.com

December 4, 2007

To whom it may concem:

This is to certify that the attached translation from Chinese into English is an accurate representation of the
document received by this office. This document is designated as:

China Intellectual Property News

George Alves, Manager of Translation Services of this company, certifies that Chuansheng Li, who translated
this document, is fluent in Chinese and standard North American English and is qualified to translate.

He attests to the following:

"To the best of my knowledge, the accompanying text is a true, full and accurate translation of the specified
document.”

Signatdre of George Alves

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4™ day of December, 2007

Certificate filed in New York County
Qualified in Kings County
Commission Expires July 8, 2010

Sincerely,

Victor J. Herlz
President & CEOQ


http:www.legallanguage.com

The Greatest Changes of the U.S Patent System in the Last 50 Years
By Yongshun Cheng and Li Lin

Brief Introduction

The bill passed in the House of Representatives last September is going to make the
greatest changes to the U.S. patent system in the last 50 years. Therefore, as soon as the
bill was introduced into the House and the Senate, it has drawn great attention not only
from the U.S., but also worldwide. Could this bill achieve the expected aim of
encouraging innovation, and benefiting both inventors and the whole economy? This
article will analyze the issues in the debate in relation to the current Chinese patent law
System.

On April 18, 2007, Rep. Howard Berman, a Democrat from California, and Rep. Lamar
Smith, a Republican from Texas, jointly proposed a bill to the House of Representatives,
entitled “Patent Reform Act, 2007 ( hereinafter referred to as “The Bill”). On
September 7, the U.S. House of Representatives adopted the Bill by 220 votes in favor
and 175 votes against. A bill similar to this Patent Reform Act along the same lines is
awaiting a vote by the whole House in the U.S. Senate.

This bill is supported in the U.S. by most large high-tech companies in the 1J.S., such as
Apple and Microsoft. They claimed that this bill could help maintain U.S. leadership in
the field of innovations, reduce the number of low quality patents, reduce the number and
cost of litigation, and balance the rights of patentees and the rights of defendants. At the
same time, we have also leamed that this bill faces strong opposition coming from
various quarters. The opponents include pharmaceutical, medical technology, and
biotechnology companies, such as Bistol-Myers Squibb, Amgen, as well as the venture
capital community. The opponents believe that this legislation will weaken the patent
protections in the U.S. What makes this bill so controversial? This article will answer
this question on the basis of the main provisions included in the bill with the reference of
Chinese patent law system.

Changes on the Review Process of Patent Applications

Firstly, this bill changes the U.S. patent system from the "first to invent" rule to the "first
to file" rule, makes it easier for the assignees to apply for a patent under the circumstance
when the inventors do not cooperate, and eliminates the best mode as the basis for an
invalidity action in either litigation or as part of a post-grant opposition procedure. These
changes are in conformity with the rest of the world.

One of the main purposes of this patent law reform is to improve the quality of granted
patents. Several provisions are proposed in the bill for this purpose, such as allowing a
third party to submit relevant prior art within 6 months from publication, requiring patent



applicants to submit a search report and other information relevant to patentability, and
providing a new post-grant review procedure to invalidate a patent before the USPTO.

This bill created a new post-grant review procedure before the USPTO, which allows a
third party to file a request within 12 months from the date of granting a patent to review
the validity of the patent, instead of bringing litigation before the courts. The reason for
these provisions is that there are currently two ways to cancel a patent, either by litigation
or inter partes reexamination. The newly created post-grant review procedure is alleged
to provide an economic and fast way to challenge a patent before litigation becomes
necessary. However, the proposed post-grant review procedure would also enable
infringers to easily subject legitimate patents to consecutive attacks, creating much
expense and uncertainty for the patent holder and those investing in the patent holder's
business.

The non-application of ‘presumption of validity’ under the post-grant review procedure is
also an important amendment. Presumption of validity means that all issued U.S. patents
are presumed to be valid; therefore the patentee in court does not need to provide
evidence that the patent is valid and the burden of proof to show that the patent is
wrongly granted by ‘clear and convincing’ evidence is placed on the accused infringer.
However, if there is no presumption of validity in the post-grant review procedure, the
patentee will need to prove the validity of the patent, which will increase the burden of
proof for the patentee. On one hand, the new post-grant review procedure might be
helpful to increase the quality of granted patents. On the other hand, it might be abused
by the competitors and result in damages to patent owners, because the burden of proof
under post-grant review procedure is different from that in litigation, the new procedure
lowers the burden of proof from “clear and convincing” to “preponderance of evidence”
standard. By the post-grant review, it is much easier and cheaper for the third party to
challenge the granted patents. This will also bring great side effects. Because the burden
of proof of the petitioner is less than that in courts, this provision is very easy to be
utilized by the competitors, which will surely increase the time and cost for the patentees
greatly if they have to raise litigation after this procedure as well as increase the
uncertainty, and delay the exploitation of the patent.

Under the current Chinese patent law, there is only an invalidation procedure to challenge
the validity of a patent, and the Patent Reexamination Board of the State Intellectual
Property Office is in charge of the examination of invalidation requests. Today, there are
a lot of invalidation requests made during the patent infringement cases. After the
invalidation decision was made, the Patent Reexamination Board could act as one party
in the following administrative litigations on invalidation decisions. Practically, the
invalidation procedure allows the public to challenge a patent at anytime after it is
granted to ensure the patentability and to supervise the legitimacy of issnance; However,
once the patentees raise the infringement cases in courts, the invalidation procedure is
always used by the defendants as a defensive strategy, even abused in some cases. Since
the invalidation decision made by the Patent Reexamination Board might be changed by
court during the administrative litigation, the time for confirming the patentability of a



patent, and that for litigating a patent infringement would be prolonged. Recently when
considering the third amend of Chinese patent law, many people believe that a new
system similar to German or Japanese Patent Court should be created to deal with the
validity issue of the patent, which can link up the invalidity procedure and litigation.

Changes on Litigation Procedure

The bill revises the current venue provisions that apply to patent infringement suits. The
bill prevents a plaintiff from manufacturing venue, as well as other limitations on
defendant venue and infringement act venue. The new provisions limit the patent
litigation into a limited exercise before special courts, which are obviously friendlier to
the large corporate defendants and will unfairly prejudice patent holders seeking to
enforce their patents.

The bill contains a provision creating a right to interlocutory appeal of trial court
decisions in patent cases on “determining construction of claims” and mandating that the
action in the trial court be stayed. This provision is made to change the high appellate
reversal rate of claim construction rulings and the resulted uncertainty. However,
interlocutory appeal can do nothing with the reasons for the relatively high reversal rate.
The claim construction process is not always a single episode in patent cases; under some
circumstance it might be revisited and revised many times. The interlocutory appeal will
only pass the cases, which could be handled by trial courts, to the Federal Circuit.
Therefore, interlocutory appeal and mandatory stay will not only increase the Federal
Circuit's workload, but also lengthen the cases. The prolonging of a suit will result in
that patentee can not obtain the remedy in time and the cost for litigation will be
increased greatly.

Changes on Patent Infringement Damages

The change on the patent infringement damage calculation method is one of the main
subjects of this reform. As the damage calculation will affect both the patentees and the
infringers greatly, the provision pertaining to this subject is also a very contentious one,
and warrants some detailed discussion.

The current U.S. patent law requires that the claimant be awarded adequate compensation
for the infringement, which should not be lower than a reasonable royalty. Under 284 U.S.
Patent Law, it is said that, “upon finding for the claimant the court shall award the
claimant damages adequate to compensate for the infringement, but in no event less than
a reasonable royalty for the use made of the invention by the infringer, together with
interest and costs as fixed by the court. When the damages are not found by a jury, the
court shall assess them. In either event the court may increase the damages up to three
times the amount found or assessed.”



The current law of damages is amended substantially in the bill. According to the bill,
the damage should be based on market value which is attributed over prior art by the
patent. There are two principal ways to evaluate the effect of different factors on the
royalty in courts, namely “entire market value rule” and “apportionment.” If the patented
feature 1s the basis for customer demand for the entire product or process, the patent
infringement damages should be based on the full value of the infringing product or
process. However some portion of the realizable profit would be subtracted by
“apportionment” from the damages, such as the improvement made by the infringers,
non-patent factors, and the risks of manufacture and business. The bills change the
damages under the 284 US Patent Law greatly, limiting the interest of the patentee to “the
economic value properly attributable to the patent’s specific contribution over the prior
art” by the new, untested method of prior art subtraction, The damage should only base
on the market value of the infringing features in the product, instead of the whole market
value of the infringing product. Under the bill, by using the language like “the patent’s
specific contribution over the prior art”, the bill enforces the use of apportionment and
precludes the usage of entire market value rule in most of the cases. The idea behind
apportionment is that customer demand for the infringing product may partly come from
the contribution by the infringers, and it is not fair to reward this part to the patentee.
However, when all of the marketability to a specific article can be credited to a patented
feature, it is appropriate to use the entire market value to reward the inventor. Otherwise
it will only encourage the inventors not to file patent applications and delay the disclosure
of innovation. In view of operation, it is very difficult to determine the additional value
added by the invention over the prior art. Almost all the inventions are made up of
combinations of old features to some extent. The determination of the value of the
invention is not as simple as one plus one is equal to two. The emphasis of the
apportionment will decrease the damages greatly in many cases, if not eliminated totally,
therefore reduce the remedies to the patentees.

However, although there are arguments about this prior art subtraction, it is advisable to
make 1t clear in the law about how to determine the damages. There is no detailed
provision both under the current Chinese Patent Law and its implementing Regulations.
The general provision under the Chinese Patent Law about damage reads as “the amount
of compensation for the damage caused by the infringement of the patent right shall be
assessed on the basis of the losses suffered by the patentee or the profits which the
infringer has eamed through the infringement. If it is difficult to determine the losses
which the patentee has suffered or the profits which the infringer has earned, the amount
may be assessed by reference to the appropriate times of the amount of the licensing
royalty.” Because this provision is not operable, the courts can exert a great discretion on
determining the damages. The US law could be used as reference when we made the
third amendment of Chinese patent law.



The Interest Groups behind the Reform

From the analysis above, we can see that the bill will weaken the right of patentees
greatly, increase their burden, and reduce the remedies for mfringement. Therefore, it
encounters strong opposition from many groups. However, even facing such a strong
opposition, it was still passed by the House of Representatives.

The reason for this is partly because it was supported by some of America’s largest and
most influential companies, which carry much political clout with the US Congress.
These companies have organized themselves into several lobbying groups. Many of
these companies have been trying to reform the patent law for more than 5 years. They
say that they are facing more and more patent infringement litigations and paying
increasing amounts of damages in these years. For these companies, a weaker patent
system, or one that benefits companies that do not rely on patent protection to obtain
market dominance serves their interests.

However, the patent reform should not only benefit a smail group, but promote the patent
protection as a whole. To apply the same way on products other than software may result
in an unfair outcome. For example, it will be very difficult for the biotechnology
companies to get investment without patent protection. It takes a long time to make a
new medicine, which is normally covered by a single patent. The same is true for start up
companies in other market sectors. Therefore the patent is crucial for the patent owners
to market and profit from their invention. On the contrary, the IP companies need less
time to develop new products, which always combine a great number of features in single
products. What is more as the products will become out of date after a short time, the
patent protection is relatively less important to them.

There are some provisions in the bill which are consistent with the trend of patent
harmonization. However, it is friendlier to the infringers than to the patentees in general
as it will make the patent less reliable, easier to be challenged and cheaper to be infringed.
It is not bad news for developing countries which have fewer patents. Many of the
Chinese companies are not patent owners in the U.S. market and their products are often
excluded from the market because of patent infringement accusations. This bill will give
the companies from developing countries more freedom and flexibility to challenge the
relative US patent for doing business in US and make it less costly to infringe.

The bill passed in the House will weaken the patent protection, and it conflicts with the
attitude of the US Government of pressuring the Chinese Government to strengthen the
protection on IP rights.

(Mr. Yongshun Cheng used to be the Deputy Director of IP division of Beijing High
People’s Court, Senior Judge)



